LETTER OPI NI ON
95-L-217

Sept enber 19, 1995

Ms. Patricia Burke

Burl ei gh County State's Attorney
514 E Thayer Ave

Bi smarck, ND 58501

Dear Ms. Burke:

Thank you for your August 18, 1995, letter concerning reinbursenent
for prosecution wtness fees.

Previously the North Dakota Suprene Court paid prosecution wtness
fees by authority of a general adm nistrative order of that court.
However, since July 1, 1989, this office has adninistered the
prosecution wtness fee reinbursenent fund. The paynment of
prosecution wtness fees are governed by NDCC 88 27-20-49,
31-01-16, and 31-01-18.

You raise several points in your letter which you wish to have
clarified. | acknow edge that the prosecution of crimnal cases is a
difficult process. Recognizing that fact, our office has interpreted
the prosecution witness fees as broadly as possible to effect the
| egi sl ative purpose. Consequently in the past we have paid for
expert witness fees when those wtnesses have actually testified.
Nonet hel ess, the statutes do not allow for reinbursenent in excess of
$25 per diemfor the witness's services in crimnal cases. There is
no distinction between expert and nonexpert w tnesses. The only way
to exceed $25 per diemis to have NND.C.C. § 31-01-18 apply. If that
section is used however, the person nust actually appear in the court
proceeding to receive reinbursenment fromthis office.

Because there is no distinction between expert wtnesses and other
wi t nesses, our office previously adopted a policy only to pay the
increased fee, subject to budgetary constraints, in those cases when
the witness actually appeared in a crimnal court proceeding.

You nmake a case for elimnating the difference between the paynent
for expert wtnesses for indigent defense experts versus vhat the
state of North Dakota pays for prosecution experts. However, the
paynment for indigent defense experts is grounded in the constitution
and we can only rely wupon statutory authority given by the
Legislature to pay for the prosecution's fees. The Legislature has
determ ned that prosecution witness fees, to the extent that they
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exceed the rates allowed by statute, should be borne by the counties
where the prosecution occurs. Thus, although it may be appropriate
for the state to pay all prosecution expenses, the Legislature has
made a determination that the counties should bear part of that cost.

You al so raise a question about an alleged case where the failure to
consult with the Attorney GCeneral office's prior to submtting a
claim for wtness expenses was given as a reason to deny those
expenses. This office is not aware of any situation where the reason
payment was deni ed was because the prosecutor did not consult wth
this office prior to incurring the expenses. Al t hough we suggest
that state's attorneys consult with our office to determ ne which
fees woul d be payabl e should rei nbursenent be sought, to the best of
our know edge we have never denied a claim solely because soneone
failed to consult with us prior to incurring costs. I woul d agree
with the inplication in your letter that there is no authority to
deny prosecution witness fees nerely because sonmeone did not seek
authorization fromthis office prior to incurring the expenses.

| agree with you that we need to do nore to assist victinms in this
state. Unfortunately ny office is Ilimted to the resources,
i ncludi ng the budget, provided by the Legislature. | understand that
the state's attorneys are also limted in what they can do by the
resources provided by the county conm ssioners. Those constraints do
not make our jobs any easier. To better balance those interests, |
propose that you and other state's attorneys join with this office
and the Association of Counties to develop a nore equitable nmethod of
payi ng prosecution witness fees then presently exists.

Finally I amenclosing a copy of a nenorandum which our staff uses to
aid them in determning which fees can be paid by this office. I
believe this nenbo will also be helpful to your understanding of the
interpretation of the statute.

Because you have raised these questions and we have heard other
guestions concerning the authority of this office to pay prosecution
wi tness fees, we plan to provide information to the counties so that
they can nore easily understand the rules under vhich we all nust

oper at e. W are currently developing a form to use to seek
rei mbur sement . The form is structured to help persons seeking
rei mbursement understand what is reinbursable. W wll provide the

State's Attorney's Association with a draft of that form for coment
before the formis finalized.

I  hope this answers your questions and you have a better
under st andi ng of the constrai nts under which we operate.

Si ncerely,
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